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N.B.

This is a SPECIFIC report on the history of number
1 Bridge Street, Bideford.

For the general history of Bridge Street, and the
complete row of buildings which comprise numbers
1to 5 & see the separate GENERAL report.

For the history of the G renville family, and their
connection with this building & see the separate
aGrenville report @

These reports have been separated
to keep file sizes as small as possible
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Listing Descriptiorg 1 Bridge Street

Royal Mail Public House (part) 1, Bideford
Grade: Il
Date Listed: 8lovember 1949

v

English Heritage Building ID: 375727 [
OS Grid Reference: SS4540726469 r ~
OS Grid Coordinates: 245407, 126469 _—

Latitude/Longitude: 51.01684.2053 15 R Riy .
Location: Church Walk, Bideford, EX39 2BU = &
SS4526 BRIDGE STREET
842-1/6/14 (South side)
08/11/49 No.1

Listing NGR: SS4539026472

. Above: Photograph of Nos. 1 and 2 Bridge Street

 believed to be taken at the time of the listing of

N0.2in1973, when trading as the 0
Public House.

Note that No.1 Bridge Street was listed in 1949.

Left: However, note the chimneys which appear
to be front-central on No.2 (above), do not
appear on the photo of the same property also
supposed to be taken at time of Listing in 1973.
We assume that these chimneys were actually
between Nos. 2 and 3.

Public HouseEarly C17, remodelled externally in mid C19.

Solid rendered walls. Hipped slate roof. Rendered chimney on rear wall (visible from
churchyard). 3 storeys-®indow main front to Church Walk with raised band above ground
storey. All windows in ground storéparded up. At righhand end C19 double doors with 2
moulded panels to each leaf. Biramed saskwindows in upper storeys, the outer secend
storey sashes with margipanes. No openings in Bridge Street front, but raised band
continues round.

INTERIORot inspected, but description by WH Rogers refers to early C17 bibailing
divided by inserted partitions: 'on the walls of a bedroom are the arms of Marwood of
Marwood, a chevron between 3 goats heads caboshed, horned or'. (Rogers W H: Notes on
Bideford: p.76).



As can be seen, the interior of this property was not inspected at the time of its listing in
1949. It would have been interesting to see what mention was made of the fireplace.
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OAt No.1 Bridge Street the ceiling is now divided up by party

~ walls. It shows the same characteristics as the others [ie:

~ plaster ceilings in Bideford], but is of a plainer type. On the

walls of a bedroom are the arms of MarwoofiMarwood, a

chevron between 3 goats heads caboshed, hooreffef:

Carew 320.HAsuby 2GS alte&ay daL KI @S 0SSy
Fye O2yySOGAz2y 06Si6SSy . ARST2NR

[taken fromWilliamHenry Roger¥otes on Bidefor@These
notesare not dated, but are typed andcuarto-sized
carbonated paper copy has been bound and deposited in the
North Devon Record Offic&ccording to Peter Christie,

these notes werg@roducedaround 1935.

TheZoat of Arm&eported as beingn this locatia is interesting, although itAd R ¥a (i
whether these Arms were painted, carved or appeared in some other form.

Former Planning History:

None able to be determined.



Census& DirectoryRecords:

1911 census

Property unable to be found ih911, adull searchableecordsarenot yet available.
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1901 census
6 Church WalkBideford

William WOLLAND, head, 26, hairdresser & shopkeeper, employer, born: Bideford

Evelyn WOLLAND, wife, 24, born: Bideford

Grace WOLLAND, dau, 3ri: Bideford

Francis WOLLAND, soAn®n, born: Bideford

(taken from ClasfRG13 Piece216Q Folio:58; PageB)

1891 census

8 Church Walk, Bideford

William P FULFORD, head, 32, coach builder, born: Northam
Mary A FULFORD, wife, 29, born: Bideford

Frecerick W FULFORD, son, 7, born: Bideford

Herbert F FULFORDns6, born: Bideford

(taken from Class: RG12; Piece: 1786; Folio 136; Page 12)

1881 census

6 Church Walk, Bideford

William CRAIG, head, 77, cooper, born: Abbotsham
Jane CRAIG, wife, 71, bornbabsham

James HARDING, graac2 y > My = OF NLISy (i SN A

Emily CRAIG, grastthu, 13, scholar, born: London, Middx.

I LILINBY GAOSs

James HARDING, border, widower, 50, sailor (merchant), born: Appledore

(taken from Class: RG11; Piece: 2259; Folio:atf&:B)
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1871 census

9 Church Yard, Bideford

William CRAIG, head, 67, cooper, born: Abbotsham

Jane CRAIG, wife, 61, born: Abbotsham

Charles CRAIG, son, 19, born: Appledore

Hester M A CRAIG, dau, 16, scholar, born: Bideford
Emily CRAIG, grasttau, 4, schola born: Paddington, Middx.
(taken from Giss: RG10; Piece: 2201; Folio: 43; Page: 14)

1861 census

Bridge Street, Bideford

William CRAIG, head, 57, master cooper, born: Abbotsham
Jane CRAIG, wife, 51, born: Abbotsham

Jane CRAIG, dau, 28, dressmaker, Herithelstock
Elizabeth CRAIG, d&8, dressmaker, borrFrithelstock
James CRAIG, son, 17, cooper, born: Frithelstock

Lucy CRAIG, dau, 15, scholar, born: Frithelstock

Charles CRAIG, s&)scholarborn: Appledore

Helen CRAIG, dau,$;holar,born: Bdeford

(taken from Class: RG9; Piece: 1502; Folio: 141; Page: 5)

1856 directory
Miss Jane Craig, milliner & dressmaker, Bridge Street

1851 census
Property unale to be identified with certainty.

1841 census
Bridge Street contained about 22 propertigsthis time, but it is not possible to identify the
exact buildings being investigated in this report.



Old Phobgraphs:

1837 engravingey 4 NI y OS (2 { (G al N Qrurch wésiaNgeliKrebduilR o0 S F 2

Note that there vere 2 sets of gatesone to the Churchyard, and the other to Church Walk.
One of the masonry gate pillars still exists, enabling us to fix the exact location of this
entrance.Thetwo-storey buildingn Church Walk can be seen on the rigjlaind side.

2012 photographs showing entrance to Churchyard, anel remaining masonry gajgost



1897: Looking up Bridge Stregt. K S KIF ANRNBX&daSNDRa 2F 2Aff ALY
on the lefthand side, followed by the Royal Mpub at No.2.

Note that there is a frontloor entrance to No.1 from Bridge Streethis was later changed

to a small window, and today a largeidth window appears here.

Facing onto Church Walk is a display window Veita 19" century cornice.

An earlier photograph of the same view. On the rigand side are theld Grammar School
buildings (demolished 187830 this could be the earliest photo we havetus street

Note that there is a ground floor window facing onto ChurchlkyVbutno upper windows
are in view. It would appear that these were added sometime within the past 130 years.
There is also a large chimndgom No2 ?) which is no longer in existence.
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1975: In the background can be

seen No.1 Bridge Street, with

- Yw2elt alAtQ aAdyz
the pub had expanded into these
premises from No.2 at this time.

. The policemen are there after a

visiting man with a shotgun went
into the Royal Mail pub, and
ordered all the staff to leave.
Although the police triedd
persuade him, to give himself up,
he sadly committed suicide in the
premises.

[North Devon Journal]
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Property Description:
Ground Floor:
Floor: Parquet herringbone timber floor (good quality).

Walls: Exposed masonry.
Masonry walopenings betwea No.2 and No.1 have been w&krmed, with good
edgesMid-way through each of the 2 openings, is a rebate formedhérhasonry,
to take a door jamb, although there are no signs that a doorway was ever installed.
As the rebag is within No.4t is assumd that the doors were meant to be seen from
the lower side (No.1).

The side and rear walls show signs of possibly having been built on bedrock (or large
lumps of stone have been used to provide a footing for the walls).

Dado paneling texternalwalls (ecent).

On the rear wall (left of fireplace) there is evidenceafumber oblockedup
openings, presumably windovesiginallyfacing towards the churchyard.

Ceiling: Plasterboard & skim, on top of sawn softwood joistp oyé . E 0 £ 0
These are supporteby alongitudinalbeamof unusualy longlength ©.2metre3,
runninglengthwaysdown the buildingnot sideto-side as might be supposed).
The exposed size of this beam is 330mm x 320mm.
Again there were no obvious ha#tdol or machinetool markings, ad the beam is of
goodquality (ie: dead straight for its entire length, no bends, twists or indentations).
There is no detailing or chamfering, and the only feature eflibamare some
markings in the middle of its length.

A central timber post (180mm2»80mm) has been used to support this beam, but
this is not shown on the 1996 survey drawing, soossiblya recent addition.

At the Bridge Street end, a gap in the stain on the beam soffit shows that there was
originally a post here (about 200mm x 270rApprobably removed when thiarge
window was added to this elevation. This beam now meets the window lintel, which
is not the best structural support for the main beam of this building. At the other
end, the beam is supported by the fireplace lintel, agat ideal in terms of
structuralstability.

Fireplace: 1600mm wide (described below, with photographs).

Stailcase: There is no staircase in this building between ground and first floors, and no
evidence that there ever wamne within the lifetime of his floor structure.
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First Floor:

Floor: All the boards on this floor have been replaced with interlocking chipboard.
Significant damage is being caused to this floor by water ingress.

Wallls: Plastered and painted, where these have decayed, it apgbatshese walls have
been limeplastered.
Chimney breast to front and rear rooms.
Ceramic tiled walls to rear room (used as a food store).

Staircase: straight flight leading to second floor landing. Curved wall at top of stairs
suggesting where formewinding staircase was located.
Second Floor:

Floor: largewidth boards §ome 410mm, som830mm wide) visible at this level.
3 rooms with fireplace hearths to front and back rooms.

Given the rather atidy appearance of
the ground foor frontage acing onto
Church Walk, No.1 Bridge Street does
actually haveguite a symmetricalipper
facade,when the more recent
alterations to the lower level are
stripped away
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Photographs:

Ground Floor:

Left: Junction of main beam with window Right: Central post support.
Lintel, showing marks of removed support.

Left: Bedrock?) base to dividing wall. Right: blocked up openings to rear wall.
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Masonry wall betweeiNos.1 and 2 Bridge Stresthiowing openings with reveals formed for
door jambs.
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FirstFloor:

First floor:showing evidence of damage caused by water ingress.
Alsomould forming on the beam belaw
(This has since been cured following roofing and othatesproofing works).

14



SecondFloor:

Original floor boardsppear toexist throughout this upper floor.
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